
February 24, 2020 City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 2 

 
 

City of Lake Geneva, 626 Geneva St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147- 262.248.3673- www.cityoflakegeneva.com 
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2020 6:00 P.M. 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 

 
Members: 

Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Mayor Hartz calls the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Alderperson Howell 
 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 

 
5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 
6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
 

7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
 

8. Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of February 10, 2020, as prepared and distributed 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on February 18, 2020. Any item listed 
on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires no 
second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
a. 2019-2021 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet  

 
b. Tier I Event Application filed by RAM Racing for the event of Big Foot Triathlon & Trail Run to take place 

at Bigfoot State Park on June 13, 2020 (trail run) and June 14, 2020 (triathlon) from 7:00 a.m. to Noon on 
both days 
 

c. Tier I Event Permit Application filed by the Lake Geneva Jaycees for the event of Jaycees Easter Egg Hunt 
to take place at Seminary Park on April 11, 2020 from 8:00 a.m. to Noon 

 
10. Items removed from the Consent Agenda 

 
11. Discussion/Action regarding possible parking rate increase to $2 City-wide and to extend the parking enforcement 

hours to 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
 

12. Discussion/Action regarding approval of agreement between the City of Lake Geneva and the Geneva Lake Family 
YMCA, Inc 

 

 



February 24, 2020 City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 2 

13. First Reading of Ordinance 20-01 an ordinance to adopt an update to the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan 
 

14. Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of February 18, 2020- Ald Howell 
 
a. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R09 a resolution of commitment and support for the Wisconsin 

Department of Transportation (WisDOT) 2020-2024 Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Application 
to Design and Construct the South Street Trail 
 

b. Discussion/Action regarding acceptance of a donation in the amount of $750 from the Lakeland Community 
Church with funds to be allocated to the Staff Appreciation Fund 
 

c. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R10 a resolution approving the assigned fund balance for the 
Avian Committee donations account as of December 31, 2019 
 

d. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R11 a resolution approving the assigned fund balance for the 
Historic Preservation Committee donations account as of December 31, 2019 
 

e. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R12 a resolution adopting 2019 transfers from the Lakefront 
Special Revenue Fund and the Parking Special Revenue Fund to the General Fund 
 

f. Discussion/Action regarding awarding the bid for the City Hall Fire Alarm Panel Replacement Project to 
Cintas in an amount not to exceed $13,915.87 
 

g. Discussion/Action regarding approval to place various Public Works and City Hall surplus equipment for 
auction and for funds generated to be placed into the Equipment Replacement Fund 
 

h. Discussion/Action regarding approving the purchase of a Turf Sweeper in an amount not to exceed 
$24,932.44 with funds generated from the sale of surplus equipment 
 

i. Discussion/Acceptance of February 18, 2020 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment 
Approval Reports 

 
15. Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. State. 19.85(1)(c )for the purposes of considering employment, 

promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body 
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility regarding: Lead Parking Maintenance Supervisor Position 
And, pursuant to Wis. State. 19.85(1)(g) for the purpose of conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body 
who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which 
it is or is likely to become involved. 
 

16. Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(2) and take action on any items discussed in 
closed session 
 

17. Adjournment 
 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 
Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

 



February 10, 2020 City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 2 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2020 7:00 P.M. OR IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE ADJOURNMENT OF THE JOINT PLAN 
COMMISSION AND COMMON COUNCIL MEETING 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 
 
Members: Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 
 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 11:16 p.m. 

 
Alderperson Hedlund led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Roll Call 
Present: Proksa, Skates, Dunn, Flower, Straube, Halverson, Hedlund, and Howell  
Absent: None 
 
Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 
None 

 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 
None 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
Charlene Klein; 817 Wisconsin St; Spoke in opposition of the extension of hours for parking enforcement.  
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
None 

 
Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of January 27, 2020, as prepared and distributed 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Proksa. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on February 4, 2020. Any item listed on the 
consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires no second, is not 
discussed, and is not voted upon. 
 
-2019-2021 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Howell. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda 
None 

 
Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of February 4, 2020- Ald Howell 

 
Discussion/Action regarding approving the use of Kapur & Associates to complete the scanning of Building & Zoning 
Department property files in an amount not to exceed $30,000 to be paid from the Contingency Fund 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Flower. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Discussion/Action regarding possible parking rate increase to $2 City-wide and to extend the parking enforcement hours 
to 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m 
Motion by Flower to continue this item until the February 24, 2020 Council meeting, second by Skates. Motion 7-1, with 
Straube voting no. 

 



February 10, 2020 City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 2 

Discussion/Action of Resolution 20-R05 amending the City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule to include wait list fees for 
Buoys, Slips, and Kayaks 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action of Resolution 20-R06 authorizing the carryover of 2019 Capital Projects Funds to the 2020 Capital 
Projects Fund Budget and authorizing additional 2020 purchases from the Capital Projects Fund 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Proksa. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action of Resolution 20-R07 authorizing the carryover of 2019 Equipment Replacement Funds to the 2020 
Equipment Replacement Fund Budget and authorizing additional 2020 purchases from the Equipment Replacement Fund 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Flower. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action of Resolution 20-R08 adopting a 2020 budget amendment authorizing the use of reserve (assigned) 
funds in the Parking Fund for the purchase of (50) kiosks from Total Parking Solutions, Inc. in the amount of $330,350 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. Clerk Kropf noted that this is resolution to amend the budget as the 
Council already approved the purchase of the kiosks and the funds to be used. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Acceptance of January 21, 2020 and February 4, 2020 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee 
Payment Approval Reports  
Motion by Howell to accept, second by Skates. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Flower to adjourn the meeting, second by Skates. Motion carried 8-0. The meeting adjourned at 11:32 p.m. 



Provisional: 
 
 
Original: 
Bailey Peterson 
Meghan Kieler 
 
Renewal: 
 

 





7a.m. to Noon- Both days

















 
1 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT dated the 27th day of January, 2020, by and between the City of Lake 

Geneva (hereinafter “City”) and the Geneva Lakes Family YMCA, Inc. (hereinafter “YMCA”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, City and YMCA wish to work cooperatively to provide recreational services 

and utilize athletic fields owned by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, City and YMCA wish to ensure that recreational facilities and programs are 

available to as many residents of the City as possible; and 

 WHEREAS, City and YMCA wish to clarify the relative roles and responsibilities of each 

party to provide recreational facilities and programs to the residents of the City; 

 NOW THEREFORE, the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable 

consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

1. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The term of this agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year commencing on 27th day 

of January, 2020. 

3. For the services recited herein, the City shall pay the sum of Fifty-Five Thousand 

Eighty and no/100 ($55,080.00) Dollars for the term of this agreement.  The sum shall 

be paid in bi-monthly installments. 

4. In exchange for the sum provided herein, the YMCA shall do the following: 

a. Provide recreational programs at Veteran’s Park as appropriate. List of programs 

shall include but not be limited to: T-Ball, Baseball, Softball, Travel 

baseball/softball, Tournament level baseball/softball, flag football, volleyball, 

soccer, LaCrosse, Adult softball, Coed softball, Adult Kickball, Pickleball. 

 

b. Coordinate the use of the athletic fields at Veteran’s Park for use by all groups 

interested in using said fields in a non-discriminating manner.  Ensure that all 



 
2 

 

groups and organizations have equal access to the athletic fields provided by the 

City. 

 

c. Prepare the baseball/softball fields for use by any organization regardless of their 

affiliation with the YMCA by marking the fields and placing of necessary 

equipment such as bases or volleyball nets.  The YMCA shall be notified a 

minimum of one week in advance of events to coordinate proper staffing.  

 

d. Coordinate the use of the fields with the City of Lake Geneva through a shared 

calendar such as google calendar. 

 

e. Make books and records available to the City showing revenues received and 

expenses paid for use of Veteran’s Park. 

 

f. Provide no less than 15% discount rates for City residents participating in activities 

through the YMCA which are conducted at Veteran’s Park. 

g. Tournaments and other rentals at Veteran’s Park will be booked through the City. 

Net proceeds will be shared equally between the City and the YMCA.  A separate 

rental agreement will be used. 

 

h. The YMCA and the City of Lake Geneva each agree to maintain in their own names 

a One Million ($1,000,000.00) Dollar liability insurance policy during the term of 

this agreement and any renewals thereof.   

 

i. Responsibilities and equipment available for use at Veteran’s Park shall be as 

follows: 

City of Lake Geneva 

• Mowing 

• Trash pickup of entire park (except Concession stand and 2nd floor of 

Lions Den/asphalt area) 



 
3 

 

• Gas for power equipment 

• ½ purchase price of groomer 

• Flower beds 

• Maintenance and repair of groomer 

• Clean and maintain bathrooms 

• Bids out concession stand 

• Any field rental agreements 

• City allows YMCA to use the garage for storage of equipment related to 

these activities (not use of Lions Den) 

• Owns and maintains regulation size Soccer Goals and nets 

• Basketball nets 

 

YMCA 

• All field work/maintenance 

• Check oil/filters, wash groomer  

• Concession Stand and 2nd floor Lions Den/asphalt areas/ 

prep/cleaning/trash pickup 

• Equipment purchases for programs 

• Maintain Batting cages 

• Owns Volleyball nets 

• Owns Bases 

• Owns chalker 

• Dispense of watering required for baseball game usage (water supplied by 

City) 

• Operations of any tournaments run thru the YMCA 

• Communication with city clerk on scheduling of park 

• ½ purchase price of groomer 

• Owner of lawn tractor, push mower, golf cart – do all maintenance 

 



 
4 

 

j. The YMCA will ensure that the fields and facilities are used in a reasonable manner 

by all patrons and invitees of the YMCA. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hand and seal this 29th day of 

January, 2020. 

      CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, a municipal corporation 

 

          By:         
      THOMAS HARTZ, Mayor 

 

          Attest:     ____________ 
      LANA KROPF, City Clerk 
 

 

GENEVA LAKES FAMILY YMCA, Inc.   
 
 

 
          By:         



 
 

120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax 
247 Freshwater Way, Suite 530 • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204 • 414.988.8631 

www.vandewalle.com 
 

Shaping places, shaping change 

To: City of Lake Geneva   

From: Jackie Mich, AICP  

Date: February 18, 2020 

Re: Approved Changes to the Comprehensive Plan 

Following is a list of changes to the Comprehensive Plan approved by the Plan Commission at 
their meeting on February 10, 2020. Exact language of the changes described below may be 
modified somewhat in order to fit existing format and sentence structure of the Plan, but key 
ideas and recommendations will be captured. 

# Change Location  

1 
 
Update recommendation: Work with the Wisconsin DNR to address 
safety issues concerning the Big Foot Beach and S. Lake Shore Drive and 
relocate the boat launch, perhaps in conjunction with the WDNR master 
plan process for the Big Foot Beach State Park. 

Page 3 
Page 178 

2 Update recommendation: Study the potential of a plaza north of the 
Riviera, consider widening sidewalks, and explore the potential use of 
Flat Iron Park; study the potential impact of such changes on parking 
and local businesses. 

Page 112 
Page 156  
Page 179 

3 Move Hillmoor “Site Analysis” and “Existing Conditions” graphics from 
Appendix A into the Comprehensive Plan, along with a short summary 
of the graphics. Remove remaining materials in Appendix A. 

Page 79 

4 Remove the term “resort” as a land use example in the Private 
Recreation Land Use designation and in reference to the Hillmoor 
property. 

Page 3 
Page 79 
Page 92 

5 Add recommendation: Support the use of electric vehicle charging ports 
where appropriate during the site plan review process. 

Page 112 

6 Recommend the Adams Farm (southeast of Bloomfield Road and 
Edwards Boulevard) as Planned Industrial on the Future Land Use Map. 
(This area was previously recommended as Planned Neighborhood.) 

Map 5a 
and Map 
5b 

7 Update/add a recommendation to study a potential STH 50 bypass and 
potential new interchanges described in the Plan (rather than to 
recommend the bypass and interchanges). 

Page 4 
Page 108 
Map 6 

http://www.vandewalle.com/


02/18/20   Page 2 of 2 

8 Add recommendation: Support the implementation of traffic controls 
and bicycle/pedestrian safety measures at Townline Road and Edwards 
Boulevard. 

Page 110 

9 Add recommendation: Work with the Geneva Lake Museum, tribes, and 
the Wisconsin Historical Society to communicate to residents and 
visitors the many past and present Native American cultural resources 
located in the Lake Geneva area, including the Geneva Lake Shore Path. 

Page 55-57 

10 Recommend the future land use pattern as requested by 120 Properties 
for the Bender property, as depicted in Draft #3, dated January 9, 2020. 
[No change to Draft Plan] 

Map 5a 
and Map 
5b 

11 Identify the number of approved and improved lots that are set for 
development and explain how they relate to projected future land use 
demand. 
 

Page 75-76 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance 20-01   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

An ordinance to adopt an update to the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan 

 
Committee 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-01 First Reading :   
Second Reading : 

February 24, 2020 
March 9, 2020 

 
The City of Lake Geneva Common Council does ordain as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Geneva on December 14, 2009 adopted the City of Lake Geneva 
Comprehensive Plan as the City’s comprehensive plan under Section 66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes, with said 
Plan including procedures for consideration of amendment and update; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Geneva has determined that a review and update to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan is necessary to ensure that the Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives are consistent with 
current needs and to meet the State requirement to update the Comprehensive Plan every ten years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes, establishes the required procedure for a local 
government to amend and update a Comprehensive Plan once it has been initially adopted; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has prepared the updated City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan (2020), 
containing all required elements, maps, and other descriptive materials, to be the Comprehensive Plan for the City 
under Section 66.1001, Wisconsin Statutes, combined with the other previously adopted Plan amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Geneva has, in compliance with the requirements of section 66.1001(4)(d) 
of the Wisconsin Statutes, provided opportunities for public involvement per its adopted public participation plan; 
and 
 WHEREAS, on February 10, 2020, the Plan Commission of the City of Lake Geneva, by a majority vote 
of the entire Commission recorded in its official minutes, has adopted a resolution recommending to the City 
Council the adoption of the ten-year update to the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed amendments on February 10, 2020, 
considered the public comments made and the recommendations of the Plan Commission and staff, and has 
determined to approve the recommended amendments as contained in the Plan Commission’s adopted resolution, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, does ordain that the proposed ten-
year update and amendments to the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan as reflected in the Plan 
Commission’s adopted Resolution No 20-PC01 is hereby adopted as the City’s Comprehensive Plan pursuant to 
section 66.1001(4)(c) of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
This ordinance shall take effect upon passage by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common Council and 
publication/posting as required by law. 
 
Approved by the City of Lake Geneva Common Council on this 9th day of March, 2020. 



Ordinance 20-01   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
  Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 

 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 

 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 20-R09   Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has been made aware of a highly competitive grant program through the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation called the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), which funds bicycle and pedestrian 
projects at an 80% grant and 20% local match; and 
 
 WHEREAS, completing the South Street Trail and improving safety at South Street intersections is identified as 
a high priority in the 2018 City of Lake Geneva Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan and remains a priority of the Park Board and 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Geneva Common Council supports the TAP application submitted to WisDOT for 
the 2020-2024 award cycle in order to complete the South Street Trail; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Geneva recognizes that WisDOT reimburses project sponsors for the 
federal share of 80% of the approved TAP project costs. The City of Lake Geneva agrees to secure and commit 
the required 20% match of approximately $240,721 allocated over a multi-year timeframe. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that if the City of Lake Geneva is awarded funding by WisDOT for 
the 2020-2024 TAP award cycle, the City of Lake Geneva is authorized to and agrees to accept the award and 
enter into all necessary agreements with WisDOT for the above referenced project; and 
 
FUTHER, be it resolved that the City of Lake Geneva agrees to comply with all applicable laws, requirements, 
and regulations as outlined in the WisDOT 2020-2024 TAP application materials. 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action:   Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action:    Accept Veto 

 
 
 

 

Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                     Date 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution of commitment and support for the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) 2020-2024 
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Application to Design and Construct the South Street Trail 

 
Committee: 

 
Finance considered on February 18, 2020 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-R09 Date: February 24, 2020 



 

 
120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax 

247 Freshwater Way, Suite 530 • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204 • 414.988.8631 
www.vandewalle.com 

 
Shaping places, shaping change 

Date:   February 2, 2020 

To:  City of Lake Geneva Common Council 

From:   Jackie Mich, AICP, Consulting City Planner 

Re: Resolution of Support for Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Grant 
Application     

 

Background Information  

The City has been made aware of a highly competitive grant program through the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation called the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), which 
funds bicycle and pedestrian projects at an 80% grant and 20% local match. At the request of 
the Board of Park Commissioners, the City of Lake Geneva, with assistance from Vandewalle 
& Associates, has submitted a TAP grant application to complete the South Street Trail. The 
proposed project is illustrated on the attached map. The Lake Geneva Bicycle & 
Pedestrian Plan, adopted in 2018, identifies the South Street Trail as a high priority 
recommendation for implementation, as it connects the Middle School and High School to 
key community destinations and addresses existing safety issues.   

The South Street Trail project involves extending the off-street trail on South Street (in front 
of the Middle School and High School). The trail will be extended in two directions: 

1. Westward along South Street, ending at Lake Shore Drive (leaving open the option 
to connect to Big Foot Beach and the State Park entrance in the future) 

2. Southeastward along Wells Street/CTH H, ending at the future YMCA site. South 
of the school campus, the trail will switch to on-street bicycle lanes due to wetlands 
adjacent to the roadway. 

The completed trail would be approximately 1.5 miles total. In addition, intersection 
improvements would be provided at S. Wells Street/CTH H and Dorwood Drive to provide 
for safer crossing by people walking and on bikes. The project would be planned in 
conjunction with the planned signalization at South Street/Bloomfield Road and Edwards 
Boulevard/STH 120. More details are found in the grant application, particularly the Narrative 
Response Questions. 

The Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan acknowledges that funding is needed to implement the project, 
and multiple jurisdictions and partners will need to work together. The City has reached out to 

http://www.vandewalle.com/


Geneva Lakes Family YMCA and Lake Geneva School District, which are both supportive of 
the project. Town of Linn and the Town of Bloomfield are both supportive of the trail in 
concept, although both Towns should be involved in project details going forward. The 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources should be involved as well, as the route borders 
Big Foot Beach State Park along South Street. 

The Vandewalle & Associates led the development of the grant application with input from 
the City Administrator, the Department of Public Works, and Kapur Associates. Kapur 
Associates prepared the costs estimate for this project. The estimated cost is $1,203,605. This 
amount includes trail design, state review, construction, construction inspection/oversight and 
contingencies. The 20% City match would be $240,721 and would come from existing Capital 
Improvement Fund allocations (approximately $___) and future Capital Improvement Fund 
allocations over a 3-4 year timeframe. Additional funding sources (private sources, funding 
from partner organizations) could be explored for the match, as well.  

If the grant is awarded, design funding would be available on July 1, 2021 at the earliest. 
Construction funding would be available the following year (July 1, 2022). Grant awards are 
expected to be announced in May or June of 2020. 

As part of the application requirements, a resolution of support from the Common Council is 
required by April 17, 2020. 

  



10/18/2019 
 

A-1 

WisDOT 2020-2024  
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Application 
http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/aid/tap.aspx 

 
 Review and utilize TAP guidelines and application instructions when completing this document.  

 
As discussed in the WisDOT TAP Guidelines, this application will go through a two-step process.  The first step will 
be an assessment by the region as to eligibility and whether or not the project will be able to meet the rigorous, 
statutorily mandated commencement deadline.  The second step will be an assessment of the relative merits of the 
application compared to other eligible applications.   Applicants will be notified if their application is found 
ineligible. 
 
Application Type 

 
Select one and only one box for the application type.  Please note that projects which are within the 
boundaries of a TMA will need to either compete locally within the MPO or as part of the Statewide 
solicitation.  Refer to this map (http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-
orgs/map.pdf) for more information about the TMA areas. 
 
  Appleton Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) – 
   Green Bay MPO 
   Madison Area MPO 
   Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (Milwaukee OR Round Lake Beach) 
 
If none of the above, project application is from: 
   Area with population between 5,000 and 200,000 
   Area with population of 5,000 or less 

  Region-wide:       % of population within a TMA area    
     % of population between 5000 and 200,000, &    
     % of population between 5000 and 200,000 

 
 
Project Applicant  
Name, Location of Public Sponsor and Sponsor Type: 
 
 Sponsor Name:  City of Lake Geneva 
 Sponsor Type (Check appropriate box):   
 Local government (check one):      County         City         Village         Town        
   Regional transportation authority         Transit agency  
   State or federal natural resource/public land agency  
   School district or school(s)        Tribal Nation  
      
Project Title:  South Street Trail  
Describe location, boundaries and length of the project:  Project is adjacent to South Street between Lake Shore 
Drive and STH 120; and a 0.5-mile segment on/adjacent to CTH H, south of Street, to future YMCA. The total 
project length, including the existing trail segment in front of the school campus, is approximately 1.54 miles. 
Boundaries are Lake Shore Drive, STH 120, and the future YMCA site on CTH H.  
County:  Walworth 
Street Address of Project (if located on a highway or road):  N2162 County Highway H (approx.) 
 

http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/aid/tap.aspx
http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-orgs/map.pdf
http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-orgs/map.pdf


10/18/2019 
 

A-2 

Note: For infrastructure projects, attach a project location map on one sheet of paper, size 8½ by 11.  
 
 
Project Contact 
Primary Public Sponsor Agency Contact Information: 
 
 Name:  Dave Nord       Title:  City Administrator       Street Address:  626 Geneva St       Phone:  (262)249-4098 
 Municipality:  Lake Geneva       State:   WI        Zip:  53147 
  
Secondary E-mail:  cityadmin@cityoflakegeneva.com 
Public Sponsor Agency or Private Organization Contact Information (if applicable): 
 
Organization / Agency Name:        
 Name:              Title:              Street Address:              Phone :  (   )    -     
 Municipality:              State:              Zip:         
 E-mail:        
 
Head of the Local Public Sponsor Agency or Private Organization Contact Information: 
 
Organization / Agency Name:  City of Lake Geneva 
 Name:  Thomas Hartz       Title:  Mayor       Street Address:  626 Geneva Street       Phone :  (262) 749-0842 
 Municipality:  Lake Geneva       State:   WI        Zip:  53147  
 E-mail:  thartz@cityoflakegeneva.com 
 

MPO, if applicable 
Select one, if applicable, 

  Bay Lake RPC (Sheboygan),   
  Brown County Planning Commission (Green Bay) 
  Chippewa-Eau Claire MPO (WCWRPC – Eau Claire) 
  Dubuque Metropolitan Area Planning Study 
  Duluth/Superior Metropolitan Interstate Committee (Superior) 
  East Central Wisconsin RPC (Appleton, Oshkosh) 
  Fond du Lac MPO (Fond du Lac) 
  Janesville MPO (Janesville) 
  La Crosse Area Planning Committee (La Crosse) 
  Madison Area MPO (Madison) 
  Marathon County MPO (Wausau) 
  Southeastern Wisconsin RPC (SEWRPC - Waukesha) 
  Stateline Area Transportation Study (Beloit) 

 
Refer to this map (http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-orgs/map.pdf) for more 
information about the TMA areas. 
 
MPO Project Prioritization  
If an MPO is submitting more than one project in an urbanized area within an MPO, the sponsor must rank each 
project in priority order, e.g., 1 (highest priority) to 5 (lowest), for the local priority among five projects. Local 
ranking will be used as a guide in project selection.  Project Priority:         
 
Please Note:  MPO Project Prioritization is due by April 17, 2020.   

 

http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-orgs/map.pdf


10/18/2019 
 

A-3 

 
 
Project Activity 
TAP Eligibility Category:     
Indicate which ONE of below categories best identifies the proposed project:  
 

 Bicycle-Pedestrian Facilities: construction, planning, and design of on-road and off-road trail facilities for 
 pedestrians, bicyclists and other non-motorized forms of transportation (this category includes on-road 
 bicycle lanes, sidewalks, etc.) 

 
 Safe routes for non-drivers, including children, older adults, and individuals with disabilities  

 
 Conversion and use of abandoned railroad corridors for trails for pedestrians, bicyclists, or other  non-

  motorized transportation users 
 

 Construction of turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas 
 

  Historic preservation and rehabilitation of historic transportation facilities  
 

 Safe Routes to School (SRTS) (this category includes infrastructure and non-infrastructure activities) 
 NOTE: Applicants proposing a project within the SRTS eligibility category MUST complete the   
 ‘School Demographics’ and ‘Safe Routes to School Plan’ sections on page A-5 below. 
 

 
Project Summary (400 words or less). Please copy and paste your response from a Word Document. 
Applicants must fill out the project summary field below.  This summary is also the first question in the narrative 
section. 
 

The South Street Trail project involves completing an off-street trail on the south side of Lake Geneva. Covering 
approximately 1.54 miles, it involves the following: 1) Complete gaps in the existing trail parallel to South Street 
between Lake Shore Drive and existing trail at Badger High School. The new trail is expected to be on the north 
side of South Street west of Dorwood Drive and on the south side east of Dorwood Drive; 2) Install intersection 
improvements at Dorwood Drive and South Street; 3) Install intersection improvements at S. Wells Street/CTH 
H and South Street; and 4) Develop a new off-street trail on CTH H between Badger High School and the Middle 
School. South of the schools, install bicycle lanes to connect to the future home of the YMCA. The proposed trail 
will consist of a 10-foot-wide asphalt trail and will permit walking, bicycling, skating, and other nonmotorized 
uses. It will be plowed for year-round use, particularly by school students. In some locations, retaining walls may 
be needed to account for changing topography.  The trail would particularly benefit the 39% of nearby residents 
who are considered to be low-income by HUD. Several vital community destinations are located directly along 
the trail route, including rear access to Big Foot Beach State Park (via Lake Geneva Blvd and Wilmont Blvd), Lake 
Geneva Youth Camp, Badger High School, Lake Geneva Middle School, the future Geneva Lakes Family YMCA 
site, residential neighborhoods, Geneva Meadows Apartments, and places of worship. The Trail would link to 
two existing off-street trails: 1) the north-south Edwards Boulevard path, which connects to employment and 
shopping areas, and 2) the former rail corridor trail that connects to Downtown. A trail along South Street is 
recommended in the City of Lake Geneva Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (2018), identified as a missing link in the 
multimodal network. The project would occur in coordination with the City’s plans to install a signalized 
intersection at South Street and STH 120, currently in the planning stages. Once implemented, the South Street 
Trail offers opportunities to expand east of STH 120 to the new Symphony Bay neighborhood, and to expand 
south to the Big Foot Beach State Park entrance on Lake Shore Drive. The South Street Trail project will be 
completed in communication with several entities, including Lake Geneva School District, Geneva Lakes Family 
YMCA, WDNR, Town of Linn, and Town of Bloomfield.     

 



10/18/2019 
 

A-4 

Project Benefit 
Check all applicable project benefits, then describe in application narrative: 
  ENVIRONMENTAL  
   Increases likelihood of modal shift to biking, walking or transit from utilitarian car travel. 
      Increases access and connection to the natural environment. 
  PUBLIC HEALTH - Project would have a demonstrable impact upon public health of applicant 

community. 
   ECONOMIC JUSTICE - Project would go beyond community enhancement to address a specific 

“communities of concern,” including elderly, disabled, minority, and low-income population? The 
project within ½ mile of affordable housing complex(s). The project improves low income access to 
transit, jobs, education, and essential services. 

    SAFETY - Project addresses a specific safety concern.  The project contains or addresses: 
     Collision data 
   Lack of adequate safe crossing or access 
   Lack of separated facility 
   High speed/volume 
   Provides sidewalk or pathway, with curb-cuts 
    Provides bike lanes, markings, and signage 
   Implements traffic calming measures 
   Signage and/or markings directed to safety concern 
   Provides crosswalk enhancement (striping, refuge island, signal, etc.) 
  For SRTS Projects there is: 
  Documented bike/pedestrian crash involving school age children or crossing guard at 

arrival/dismissal times near the school.   
  Crossings of state highways, main arterial roads or other high speed or high traffic volume 

roads.   
  Lack of bicycle and pedestrian facilities or lack of connectivity of facilities that do exist.  
   High level of parental concern documented in survey data.  
  Few or no children who live within 1 mile walk or bike.  Busing may be offered to everyone 

because of documented hazards. 
  Children are walking but application shows that unsafe conditions exist. 
  HISTORICAL AND/OR PRESERVATION SIGNIFICANCE – Project would have strong historical or 

preservation benefit. 
  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – Project facilitates economic development by increasing bicycle/ 

pedestrian traffic in commercial corridors or by creating a destination that will help retail. 
 
Local Resolution of Support 
There is or there will be a local resolution of support for the proposed project, executed by a governing body that 
has the authority to make financial commitment on behalf of the project sponsor (i.e., County Board, City 
Council, or Regional Planning Commission Policy Board).  
             Yes         No 
Please note that a resolution will be required for an application to be eligible, which means a copy of the 
resolution should be submitted to the Region Local Program Manager no later than 5:00 PM April 17, 2020.  
 
WisDOT History of the Project Area 
Is the proposed project on a State Highway?        Yes         No 
 Name of State Highway:       
 

Does the proposed project intersect a State Highway?        Yes         No 
 Name of State Highway:       
 

Has there been, or will there be a road improvement project in this project area?    Yes         No 



10/18/2019 
 

A-5 

 

If yes, year:       
If yes, describe project:  State Highway Project      STP     Local Bridge      LRIP 
 Pavement Replacement   Reconstruction                 New Construction 
 Describe:       
 

Existing Facilities & Projects that Impact the Proposed Project 
Rail Facilities: 
 Does a railroad facility exist within 1,000 feet of the project limits?       Yes         No
 If yes, specify:  SELECT   
 If yes, does the project physically cross a rail facility?             Yes         No 
 Will an easement from OCR be required?                        Yes         No 
 
Is the proposed project location in an area with known safety issues?       Yes         No    
    If yes, specify:  South Street and STH 120  and (consider applying for Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
funds if applicable) 
 
Is this project on or parallel to a local road or street?        Yes         No   
     If Yes, provide the name of the road or street:  South Street and Wells Street/CTH H 
Does this project cross a state or federal highway?        Yes         No 
Does this project run parallel to a state or federal highway?        Yes         No  
If Yes to any of these questions attach an existing typical cross-section of the roadway, showing right of way, 
travel lanes, shoulder and sidewalk (if applicable).  Examples are available in FDM15-1-5 attachment 5.3 of the 
WisDOT facilities Development Manual.  
 
Will this project be constructed as part of another planned road project?       Yes         No  
If Yes, specify if this is a state, county, or local project and when the road project is scheduled for construction:   
Will any exceptions to standards be requested?         Yes         No 
If Yes, provide a brief description of the exceptions that may be requested:  In some locations, an 8’ wide (vs. 10') 
pathway; less than 3’ separation between roadway and path; clear zone less than 3' at edge of path 

 
Real Estate (RE) /Right of Way (ROW) 
Was any real estate acquired or transferred in anticipation of this project?      Yes         No 
If yes, please explain.           
 

List any other funding (past or present) used within the proposed project limits (i.e. DNR Stewardship) 

(none) 
 
Is the project on an existing right of way (ROW)?         Yes         No 
 (NOTE: It is recommended that local funds be used to acquire right of way)  
 
If Yes, have you obtained a permit from the WisDOT Regional Office Maintenance Section to conduct work on 
the right of way?           Yes         No 
Check all boxes that apply to ROW acquisition for this project: 

 None    Less than ½ acre      More than ½ acre 
 Parklands        Large parcels              Temporary interests 

List any other funding (past or present) used within the proposed project limits (i.e. DNR Stewardship). 

(none) 
  

http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-15-01.pdf#fd15-1-5
https://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-15-01-att.pdf#fd15-1a5.3


10/18/2019 
 

A-6 

If right of way was acquired in anticipation of this project, attach a detailed list of available, completed 
project and parcel acquisition documentation. Refer to Section 11.2, Records Management, found in the LPA 
MANUAL for RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION  
https://wisconsindot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa-manual.pdf.  
 
If right of way was acquired in anticipation of this project, did the acquisition contain any buildings or relocation?  

  Yes         No      
 If yes, Please read Section 6.2, Relocation Assistance, found in the LPA MANUAL for RIGHT OF WAY 
 ACQUISITION to determine if relocation assistance was properly offered and documented 
 https://wisconsindot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa-manual.pdf 
 
If right of way is required, acquisition will occur through a transfer of an adequate interest in real property. 
   Yes         No 
FHWA has determined that an adequate real property interest excludes licensing agreements (LA), which 
agreements will not be considered. 
 
For real estate questions, please contact Kerry Paruleski, WisDOT Local Public Agency Real Estate Statewide 
Facilitator, at (414) 220-5461 or kerry.paruleski@dot.wi.gov. 

 
 
 
 
Environmental/Cultural Issues 
Agriculture        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Archaeological sites       Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Historical sites        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Designated Main Street area       Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Lakes, waterways, floodplains      Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Wetland        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:  mapped wetlands on both sides of CTH H 
Storm water management      Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Hazardous materials sites      Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Hazardous materials on existing structure    Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Upland habitat        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Endangered/threatened/migratory species    Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Section 4(f)        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:  Big Foot Beach State Park 
Section 6(f)        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        
Section 106        Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        

https://wisconsindot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa-manual.pdf
https://wisconsindot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa-manual.pdf


10/18/2019 
 

A-7 

Through/adjacent to tribal land      Yes         No          Not Investigated     
Comments:        

 
Miscellaneous Issues 
Construction Schedule Restrictions (trout, migratory bird, local events):  None 
 
Local Force Account (LFA): Will the proposed project utilize municipal employees to complete any portion of the 
construction activities?    Yes         No      
If yes, explain the desired LFA portion of the project.        
 
 NOTE:  LFA work must include labor, equipment and materials. The purchase of materials only is not 

considered to be a legitimate project. 
NOTE:  Please review WisDOT TAP Guidelines for restrictions on certain LFA work as of July 1, 2015. 

 

Maintenance (only complete this section if project application involves a trail project):  
Will the facility be snowplowed in the winter?    Yes         No   
Comment:        
If no to the above question, will the trail allow snowmobile use in the winter?    Yes         No   
Comment:        
Anticipated fee for trail use:   Yes         No   
Comment:        
Anticipated equestrian use on trail:    Yes         No   
Comment:        

Other Funding Sources: Has the municipality anticipated, requested or been approved for other federal or state 
funding from WisDOT for the improvement?    Yes         No  
 
If yes, please indicate all the other funding sources that are anticipated, have been requested or approved with 
the associated project ID(s):  
 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)    Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Local Roads Improvement Program (LRIP)         Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Railroad Programs                 Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Surface Transportation Program – Rural    Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Surface Transportation Program - Urban     Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
CMAQ        Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Transportation Enhancements Program         Approved ID:       
Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities Program          Approved ID:       
Safe Routes to School            Approved ID:       
Transportation Economic Assistance Program    Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Flood Damage Aids                            Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
State Funding (Describe):                            Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
Other:                                                            Anticipated     Requested   Approved ID:       
 
Is project identified in a long-range transportation plan?   Yes         No If Y, link to plan: 
Is project identified in a bicycle-pedestrian plan?   Yes         No If Y, link to plan: 
Is project identified in an outdoor recreation plan?   Yes         No If Y, link to plan: 
Is project identified in a comprehensive plan?    Yes         No If Y, link to plan: 
Is project identified in any other planning document?   Yes         No If Y, link to plan: 
 
Other Concept Notes: Provide any additional relevant project information that has not been covered in another 
section of the application. 
VISION 2050- https://www.sewrpc.org/SEWRPC/VISION_2050/2050RegLandUseTranspPlan.htm 



10/18/2019 
 

A-8 

BIKE/PED PLAN- https://www.cityoflakegeneva.com/vertical/sites/%7B14619068-6F01-4703-8EEB-
EA74850C93B5%7D/uploads/Lake_Geneva_Bicycle_Pedestrian_Plan_-_Adopted_3_26_18.pdf 
PARK & OPENS SPACE PLAN- http://626geneva.com/Clerk/Park_and_Open_Space_Plan_2015-
2020_Adopted_May2015.pdf 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - https://www.cityoflakegeneva.com/vertical/Sites/%7B14619068-6F01-4703-8EEB-
EA74850C93B5%7D/uploads/City_of_Lake_Geneva_Comprehensive_Plan_(with_maps)_Amended_11.13.17.
pdf    

 
School Demographics (Complete ONLY if submitting a project within the SRTS Programming / Planning eligibility category) 
 

What are the name(s) and demographics for each school affected by the proposed program or project?  

Optional: Alternatively, SRTS project applicants may submit a narrative response/attachment 1 detailing 

school demographics provided that all fields below are answered in such attachment. 

School name:         School population:         Grades of students at school:             

Estimated number of students currently walking to school (if known):          

Estimated number of students currently biking to school (if known):        

Does the school have any policies related to walking or biking?       

Distance eligibility for riding a bus:          Number of children not eligible for busing:          

Number of students eligible for busing because of a hazard situation:         

Percentage of students living within one mile of the school:         

Percentage of students living within two miles of the school:         

Percentage of students eligible for free or reduced-cost school meals:        

Community(s) served by school:         Community(s) population:        
 
 
Safe Routes to School Infrastructure (Complete ONLY if submitting a project within the SRTS eligibility 
category) 
 
Does your school or community have a Safe Routes to School plan?   Yes      No  

If yes, can it be viewed online?   Yes, the website address is           No, it is attached with the application. 

If no, please describe, in no more than 400 words, any SRTS-related planning efforts undertaken by the school or 

community.        
 

 
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 
Project Costs, Priorities, and State Fiscal Years: 
 

NOTE: do not include pages A-7 and A-8 in the Concept Definition Report (CDR) for approved TAP 
projects. 

 
Complete the table below for the appropriate fiscal years of the application/project cycle (2020-2024). If a 
sponsor proposes to construct a project in phases throughout multiple years, schedule the project costs as 
appropriate and provide further details in the project description.  
 



10/18/2019 
 

A-9 

In addition to the table below, attach a detailed breakdown of project costs in Microsoft Excel. This detailed 
breakdown must clarify assumptions made in creating the budget such that a third-party reviewer would be able 
to substantiate the assumptions. 
 
Submit a separate application and budget for each project or stand-alone project segment for which you are 
willing to accept funding, or for a bike trail section that could function as a separate facility. Project requests are 
not considered for partial funding. 
 
Applicants may work with the Local Program Manager within their region for assistance to more accurately 
estimate costs.  All estimates will be reviewed by WisDOT Region staff for consistency with current practices 
and approaches.  Also, WisDOT Region staff may revise estimates in these categories due to the complexity of 
the project or other factors. WisDOT will notify the sponsor of any changes to estimates within the application 
and determine whether the sponsor wishes to continue with the application with the revised estimate. 
 
NOTE: Requesting design and construction projects in the same fiscal year is not allowed. 
 
Project Prioritization   
If a sponsor is submitting more than one project the sponsor must rank each project in priority order, e.g., 1 (highest 
priority) to 5 (lowest), for the local priority among five projects. Local ranking will be used as a guide in project 
selection. Project Priority:  1 
 

  Construction: 
 Basis for Construction Estimate:    Itemized         Per Square Foot         Past Projects        
   Other, please specify:        

 Schedule Preference:    FY 2023         FY 2024 

 Construction (minimum $200,000): 
 Federal Share of the Participating Construction Cost (80%)   $739,479.82 
 Local Share of the Participating Construction Cost (20%)    $184,869.96 
 Non-Participating Construction Cost (100% Local)    $0.00 

 A. Subtotal Construction Costs         $924,349.78 
 B. State Review for Construction (Contact WisDOT Region)  Percentage:     % $15,600.00 

Construction with State Review Cost Estimate (sum lines A and B)        $939,949.78 
 

  Design: 
  100% Locally Funded (state review is required to be included as 100% locally funded) OR 
  80% Federally Funded (“state review only” projects are not allowed)    

   FY 2021         FY 2022   FY 2023 
 

A. Plan Development (Contact WisDOT Region)    Percentage:  16 % $147,895.96 
B. State Review for Design (Contact WisDOT Region)   Percentage:     % $11,760.00 
Design with State Review Cost Estimate (sum lines A and B)    $159,655.96 
 
 

  Real Estate: (Recommend funding with local funds.) 
 

   FY 2021         FY 2022         FY 2023         FY 2024 
 

Total Real Estate Cost (round to next $1,000)      $100,000 
 

  Utility: (Compensable utility costs must be $50,000 minimum per utility.  



10/18/2019 
 

A-10 

 Recommend funding with local funds. 
 

  FY 2021         FY 2022         FY 2023         FY 2024 
 
 Total Utility Cost (round to next $1,000)      $4,000 
 

  Other: (Planning or SRTS Programming): 
 

  FY 2021         FY 2022         FY 2023         FY 2024 
 

Total Other Cost (round to next $1,000)       $      
 

NOTE: WisDOT Policy link: http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/eng-consultants/cnslt-rsrces/rdwy/default.aspx. 
 
NOTE: WisDOT Region staff may revise estimates in the Plan Development, State Review for Design, and 
State Review for Construction categories based on the complexity of the project or other factors. 
 
Narrative Response  
Provide a narrative response attachment answering questions 1 through 3, making sure to provide information 
in response to each sub-question. Please limit the response to (6) six pages, using a minimum 11-point font 
size.  
 
1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND OVERVIEW.  
 

This is the summary from page A-3 of the application.  It is a general overview of the project, including type of 
facility or project, location (please attach a location map or maps) and any other information about the project.  
It is brief.  Limited to about 400 words. 
 
2. PROJECT PLANNING & PREPARATION & LOCAL SUPPORT 
Describe the degree to which this project was planned for and the local support and commitment for the 
project.  If this project is part of a plan, describe that plan and the project’s priority in that plan.  If this is a 
planning project describe how this project will be integrated into other efforts.  For SRTS projects, describe 
walk/ bike audits, parent surveys and data on crashes that support the selection of this project. 
 
3.   HISTORY OF SPONSOR SUCCESS, DELIVERABILITY AND COMMITMENT TO MULTIMODAL 
 

How will the project be implemented on time?  What obstacles or problems must be overcome to implement 
this project, and in light of project obstacles, describe how the project sponsor will comply with state law and 
policy requiring project commencement within four years of the award date, and project completion within 
approximately six years? Please describe prior experience with other multimodal projects and success in 
delivering those projects in the year in which they were scheduled.  For example, were you able to deliver the 
project in the year it was programmed? Have you ever had to turn back awarded federal funds? Please explain. 
If problems were experienced in the past, what will be done on this project to ensure successful completion?  
Describe the project sponsor’s commitment to multimodal programs and facilities generally like a complete 
streets ordinance, advisory committees, or inclusion of multimodal accommodations in any other local 
program projects. 
 

4. PROJECT UTILITY & CONNECTIVITY 
 

For Infrastructure Projects 
Describe the degree to which this project serves utilitarian rather than recreational purposes and how, if at all, 
the project adds connectivity to the state’s multi-modal transportation network, including bicycle, pedestrian 
and transit facilities.  Describe how, if at all, the proposed project would connect to these existing land uses: 
park, school, library, public transit, employment and/or retail centers, residential areas, other.  Describe how 
this project fills a multimodal gap or serves as a backbone to a local multimodal network. 

http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/eng-consultants/cnslt-rsrces/rdwy/default.aspx


10/18/2019 
 

A-11 

 

For Planning Projects 
Implementation of plan would serve a broad geographic area and adds connectivity to the state’s multimodal 
transportation network.  Describe how this project fills a multimodal gap or serves as a backbone to a local 
multimodal network. 
 
For Safe Routes to School Programming Projects 
Will the project get a higher percentage of children walking and biking to school - addresses clear safety 
problems for children already walking/biking.  Address the following desired outcomes: reduction in parent 
concerns that keep them from allowing children to walk/bike; potential for changes in hazard busing; change 
in policy limiting walking/biking to school; increased school commitment to promoting walking/biking; 
improved driver behaviors in the school zone; making it more appealing for children to walk/bike; more law 
enforcement participation in walking/biking issues 
 
5. PROJECT BENEFIT– ENVIRONMENTAL, LIVABLITY, ECONOMIC JUSTICE, PUBLIC HEALTH, HISTORICAL 
PRESERVATION, & SAFETY 
 

 NOTE:  A TAP project should contribute to a community benefit. No applicant’s project is expected to 
contribute to all the benefits listed on A-3 of the application, but a project that contributes to more than 
one benefit or has significant impact on a particular benefit will receive more points. 

 

Describe the benefits likely derived from the proposed project, this description should correspond to the 
project benefit section on page A-3.  
 
6. PROJECT CAPITALIZES ON, SUPPLEMENTS OR AUGMENTS AN EXISTING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 
There is a way to tie the multimodal project to an existing road improvement project that allows the project 
sponsor to take advantage of the resources of a larger project. 
 
• For SRTS projects: The project addresses safety and education issues of walking and biking to school due 

to a recent or anticipated road improvement project. 
 
Key Program Requirements Confirmation 
 
Please confirm your understanding of the following project condition by typing your name, title and initials at the 
bottom of this section.  A Head of Government/Designee with fiscal authority for the project sponsor must initial 
this section and sign this application.  Sponsor consultant(s) should not initial or sign project applications. 
 
WisDOT will deem ineligible any application that does not provide confirmation to this section. 
 
a.     Private organizations proposing projects must have a public project sponsor such as a local government unit. 
  
b.    The project sponsor or private partner must provide matching dollar funding of at least 20% of project costs. 
 
c.    This is a reimbursement program.  The project sponsor must finance the project until federal reimbursement 

funds are available.   
 
d. The project sponsor will pay to the state all costs incurred by the state in connection with the improvement that 

exceed federal financing commitments or other costs that ineligible for federal reimbursement.  In order to 
guarantee the project sponsor’s foregoing agreements to pay the state, the project sponsor, through its duly 
executed officers or officials, agrees and authorized the state to set off and withhold the required 
reimbursement amount as determined by the state from any monies otherwise due and payable by the state 
to the municipality.  

 



10/18/2019 
 

A-12 

e.  The project sponsor must not incur costs for any phase of the project until that phase has been authorized for 
federal charges and the WisDOT Region has notified the sponsor that it can begin incurring costs.  Otherwise, 
the sponsor risks incurring costs that will not be eligible for federal funding. 

 
f.  The project sponsor will follow the applicable federal and state regulations required for each phase of the 

project.  Some of these are described in the Guidelines. The requirements include, but are not limited to, the 
following:  a Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) process for design and engineering services (Brooks Act); real 
estate acquisition requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
of 1970 and amendments; competitive procurement of construction services;  Davis-Bacon wage rates on 
federal highway right-of-way projects; WisDOT FDM & Bicycle Facilities Handbook; ADA regarding accessibility 
for the disabled; MUTCD regarding signage; U.S. Department of the Interior standards for historic buildings. Each 
WisDOT Region can provide copies of the current Sponsor’s Guide to Non-Traditional Transportation Project 
Implementation, and references for sections of the Facilities Development Manual (FDM) and other documents 
necessary to comply with federal and state regulations.  Applicants who plan to implement their projects as 
Local Let Contracts using the Sponsor’s Guide must become certified that they are capable of undertaking 
these projects. 

 
g. If applying for a bicycle facility, it is understood that All Terrain Vehicles (ATVs) are not allowed.  Snowmobile 

use is only allowable by local ordinance. Trail fees may only be charged on a facility if the fees are used solely to 
maintain the trail. WisDOT reserves the right to require that facilities be snowplowed as part of a maintenance 
agreement where year-round use by bicyclists and pedestrians is expected. 

 
h. The project sponsor agrees to maintain the project. Failure to maintain the facility, or sale of the assets improved 

with FHWA funds will subject the sponsor to partial repayment of federal funds or additional stipulations 
protecting the public interest in the project. 

 
i. If the project sponsor should withdraw the project, it will reimburse the state for any costs incurred by the state 

on behalf of the project. 
 
j. The project sponsor agrees to state delivery and oversight costs by WisDOT staff and their agents. These costs 

include review of Design and Construction documents for compliance with federal and state requirements, 
appropriate design standards, and other related review. These costs will vary with the size and complexity of 
the project. The sponsor agrees to add these costs to the project under the same match requirements 80% / 
20% match requirements. 

 
k.  Projects that are fully or partially federally funded must be designed in accordance with all applicable federal 

design standards, even if design of the project was 100% locally funded. 
 
l. As the project progresses, the state will bill the project sponsor for work completed that is ineligible for federal 

reimbursement. Upon project completion, a final audit will determine the final division of costs as between the 
state and the project sponsor.  If reviews or audits reveal any project costs that are ineligible for federal funding, 
the project sponsor will be responsible for any withdrawn costs associated with the ineligible work. 

 
m. For 100% locally-funded design projects, cost for design plan development and state review for design are 100% 

the responsibility of the local project sponsor.  Project sponsors may not seek federal funding only for state 
review of design projects. 

 
n. The project sponsor acknowledges that the requisite project commencement requirement and that failure to 

comply with the applicable commencement deadline will jeopardize federal funding. Commencement is within 
four years of the date of the project award. The project must be commenced within four (4) years of the project 
award date according to Sec. 85.021, Wis. Stats.  For construction projects, a project is commenced when 
construction is begun.  For planning projects, a planning project is commenced when the planning study is 
begun.  For non-infrastructure projects that do not fall within any of the above categories, a project is considered 
commenced on the date that WisDOT receives the first reimbursement request from the project sponsor, as 
noted on form DT1713 in the ‘Date Received’ field.  

 



10/18/2019 
 

A-13 

o. The project sponsor acknowledges that the requisite project completion timeline for approved TAP projects will 
be memorialized in a state-municipal agreement, and failure to comply with the applicable project timeline will 
jeopardize federal funding. 

 
p. Federally-funded transportation construction projects, with the exception of sidewalks, are likely improvements 

that benefit the public at large. Improvements of this type cannot generally be the basis of levying a special 
assessment pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0703. Municipalities who wish to obtain project funding via special 
assessment levied against particular parcels should seek advice of legal counsel.  See Hildebrand v. Menasha, 
2011 WI App. 83. 

 
Please confirm your understanding of the following project condition by typing your name, title and initials at the 
bottom of this section.  A Head of Government/Designee with fiscal authority for the project sponsor must initial 
this section and sign this application.  Sponsor consultant(s) should not initial or sign project applications. 
 
I confirm that I have read and understand project conditions (a) through (p) above: 
Name:  David Nord                     Title:   City Administrator                           
Accepted (please initial here):   DN        
 
Fiscal Authorization and Signature 
Application prepared by a consultant?    Yes         No    
If yes, consultant information and signature required below.  

Consultant Company Name:  Vandewalle & Associates       Company Location (City, State):  Milwaukee, WI

  

Consultant Signature (electronic only):  Jaclyn A. Mich    Date:  1/24/2020 
NOTE: On Local Program projects, it is not permissible for a consultant to fill out applications gratis (or for a small 
fee) for a municipality and then be selected to do the design work on a project. A municipality could start their 
consultant selection process early enough and make the application part of the scope of services with the 
understanding that all costs incurred prior to authorization will be the responsibility of the local municipality.  
See FDM 8-5  for additional information. 

 

 

Sponsor Agency:  City of Lake Geneva 

Contact Person:   David Nord     (Note: must be Head of Government or 

Designee) 

Title:  City Administrator 

Address:  626 Geneva Street  

Telephone:  (262) 249-4098 

Email:  cityadmin@cityoflakegeneva.com 
Only one project sponsor is allowed per project. As a representative of the project sponsor, the individual that 
signs below is confirming that the information in this project application is accurate. A local official, not a 
consultant, must sign the application. I understand that completion of this application does not guarantee 
project approval for federal funding.  
 

Head of Government/Designee Signature (electronic only):           David Nord       Date:  1/24/2020 
 

http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-08-05.pdf#fd8-5


10/18/2019 
 

A-14 

Application and Attachments    
 
Submit applications and attachments utilizing the contact information contained in the corresponding TAP Pre-
Scoping Application Instructions. Applicants must submit eligible applications on or before 5PM on January 24, 
2020, and must include the following documents: 
 

  A completed application in Microsoft Word format 
   Narrative Response/Attachment 3: maximum of one double-spaced page, minimum 11-point font size 
   Cost Estimate Detail as required in the ‘Project Costs and Dates’ section of this application 
   For infrastructure projects, a project map printed in black & white, on one sheet of 8½ by 11 paper 
   If available, a local resolution of support for the proposed project 
   If right of way was acquired in anticipation of this project, attach a detailed list of available, 

completed project and parcel acquisition documentation (see page A-2) 
 
OPTIONAL Attachment 
   If proposed project crosses or runs parallel to a local road, street, or state or federal highway, attach 

 an existing typical cross-section of the roadway, showing right of way, travel lanes, shoulder and 
 sidewalk (if applicable) (see page A-2). 

  SRTS School Demographics Information 
 
NOTE:  Do not include additional attachments (photos, letters of support, etc.)  
WisDOT Information – Shaded area to be completed by WisDOT staff only. 

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY –This information must be entered on the spreadsheet and on the application. 
WisDOT Region comments on application, including eligibility concerns:        

Region Reviewer’s Name:         

Reviewer’s Title:                      Date Received:        



Lake Geneva South Street Trail 

Page 1 of 6 

Narrative Response Questions  

One. Narrative Summary of Project  

The South Street Trail project involves completing an off-street trail on the south side of Lake Geneva. 

Covering approximately 1.54 miles, it involves the following: 1) Complete gaps in the existing trail parallel 

to South Street between Lake Shore Drive and existing trail at Badger High School. The new trail is expected 

to be on the north side of South Street west of Dorwood Drive and on the south side east of Dorwood Drive; 

2) Install intersection improvements at Dorwood Drive and South Street; 3) Install intersection improvements 

at S. Wells Street/CTH H and South Street; and 4) Develop a new off-street trail on CTH H between Badger 

High School and the Middle School. South of the schools, install bicycle lanes to connect to the future home 

of the YMCA. The proposed trail will consist of a 10-foot-wide asphalt trail and will permit walking, 

bicycling, skating, and other nonmotorized uses. It will be plowed for year-round use, particularly by school 

students. In some locations, retaining walls may be needed to account for changing topography.  

The trail would particularly benefit the 39% of nearby residents who are considered to be low-income by 

HUD. Several vital community destinations are located directly along the trail route, including rear access to 

Big Foot Beach State Park (via Lake Geneva Blvd and Wilmont Blvd), Lake Geneva Youth Camp, Badger 

High School, Lake Geneva Middle School, the future Geneva Lakes Family YMCA site, residential 

neighborhoods, Geneva Meadows Apartments, and places of worship. The Trail would link to two existing 

off-street trails: 1) the north-south Edwards Boulevard path, which connects to employment and shopping 

areas, and 2) the former rail corridor trail that connects to Downtown. A trail along South Street is 

recommended in the City of Lake Geneva Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (2018), identified as a missing link in 

the multimodal network. The project would occur in coordination with the City’s plans to install a signalized 

intersection at South Street and STH 120, currently in the planning stages. Once implemented, the South 

Street Trail offers opportunities to expand east of STH 120 to the new Symphony Bay neighborhood, and to 

expand south to the Big Foot Beach State Park entrance on Lake Shore Drive. The South Street Trail project 

will be completed in communication with several entities, including Lake Geneva School District, Geneva 

Lakes Family YMCA, WDNR, Town of Linn, and Town of Bloomfield.  



Lake Geneva South Street Trail 

Page 2 of 6 

Two. Project Planning & Preparation & Local Support  

There is significant local support and commitment for this trail project. Led by the Board of Park 

Commissioners, the City has committed annual budget funds to complete gaps in the City’s bicycle and 

pedestrian network and has committed funds to apply for this grant with assistance from Vandewalle & 

Associates and Kapur & Associates. Improved multimodal facilities along South Street have been 

contemplated as early as 2009, in the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan. The City’s 2015-2020 Park 

and Open Space Plan recommends improving off-street trail connections along South Street to link 

neighborhoods to the school campus and Big Foot Beach State Park. To further its commitment to 

multimodal transportation, the City adopted its first Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan in 2018, which recommends a 

trail along South Street and intersection improvements at Wells Street/CTH H. That plan also recommends 

continuing the trail south through Big Foot Beach State Park, which is a very long-term future project. The 

Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan identifies the South Street Trail as a high priority, long-term recommendation and 

acknowledges that funding sources are needed and that multiple jurisdictions and partners will need to work 

together to implement the project. While not yet in adopted plans, the Wells Street/CTH H segment was 

added to this project to provide a safe connection to the future new YMCA site, which was announced in the 

fall of 2019. The South Street corridor is also included in SEWRPC’s Vision 2050 plan as a recommended 

arterial street or highway with bicycle accommodation. The City has shared conceptual plans for the South 

Street Trail with the many different entities that the trail touches, including Geneva School District, Geneva 

Lakes Family YMCA, WDNR, Town of Linn, and the Town of Bloomfield. The Geneva Lakes Family 

YMCA, which serves as the City of Lake Geneva recreation department, has expressed its support for the 

project. With a focus on youth development, healthy living, and social responsibility, the YMCA is planning 

to annex its new site on CTH H into the City and will work with the City to integrate the new site into the 

City’s trail network. Lake Geneva School District has offered its support and cooperation on the project. 

The City has engaged in conversations with the School District to discuss safe routes to school and 

pedestrian safety around the school campus. Although a Safe Routes to School program has not been 

established, the safety of students remains a high priority for both the City and School District. The School 



Lake Geneva South Street Trail 

Page 3 of 6 

District and City are currently working together to provide a signalized intersection at STH 120 and South 

Street, which may be jointly funded. The Town of Linn and the Town of Bloomfield are both supportive of 

the trail in concept, although both Towns have emphasized a desire to continue working with the City on key 

project details and future shared services agreements or jurisdiction changes. The proposed South Street Trail 

would be maintained by the City of Lake Geneva, although it would likely run through portions of Town of 

Linn right-of-way and Town of Bloomfield right-of-way on South Street and CTH H. Currently, the City and 

the Town of Bloomfield are finalizing a Shared Services Agreement related to upgrading to a signalized 

intersection of South Street/Bloomfield Road and STH 120, at the terminus of this Trail project. The signal 

project will likely involve a mutual boundary adjustment to confer jurisdiction of the intersection to the City.  

Three. History of Sponsor Success, Deliverability and Commitment to Multimodal  

The City of Lake Geneva is committed to multimodal programs and facilities. The vision of Lake Geneva as 

a walkable, bikeable community through development of an interconnected sidewalk and trail network is 

well established in adopted City plans (including the Comprehensive Plan, Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan, and 

Park and Open Space Plan). Additionally, the City’s zoning ordinance requires all developments of 60,000 

sq. ft. or more to connect to the City’s existing and planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities and provide 

multimodal facilities within the development. City policy requires sidewalk and bicycle facilities for all new 

developments. The City currently has five multi-use trails, mainly located on the east side of the City, and a 

northwest-southeast trail along an inactive rail bed, which connects to Downtown Lake Geneva. The South 

Street Trail would fill a gap in the City’s growing bicycle and pedestrian network. Multimodal efforts are led 

by the City’s Board of Park Commissioners, which is committed to expanding walkability and bikeability in 

the City.  

This project is special because it brings together several community partners and local governments. 

However, this also means that the City relies on the continued cooperation of these partners to complete the 

Trail, particularly the School District and the Towns of Linn and Bloomfield. The City expects these 

relationships to remain strong; however, the City acknowledges that the success of the Trail depends on these 

partnerships. The City intends to maintain open lines of communication throughout project design and 



Lake Geneva South Street Trail 

Page 4 of 6 

construction phases in order to ensure continued collaboration. Existing conditions along South Street and 

CTH H present some challenges, including variable topography, lack of space between development and the 

road, utility poles close to the road, mapped wetlands, and presence of mature trees. The design will need to 

be creative in navigating this tight space. At times, trail width, roadway separation, and trail clear zone may 

need to be reduced in order to complete the Trail. 

The City has successfully managed multimodal projects in the past and is prepared to commence and 

complete this project on time. In 2010, the City extended Edwards Boulevard from STH 50 to Sheridan 

Springs Road. The project included the construction of a multiuse path parallel to Edwards Boulevard, 

sidewalks, a bridge, storm sewers, water and sewer mains, and stormwater detention ponds. The project, 

which was partially funded by WisDOT, was completed on time and on budget. In addition, the City has 

successfully managed recreational trails and parkland acquisition projects funded by WDNR Knowles-

Nelson Stewardship Grants. The City has never turned back federal funds. If awarded, the grant for the South 

Street Trail would be a high-profile project, with careful scrutiny by the Common Council and public, 

ensuring diligent planning and project management.  

Four. Project Utility & Connectivity 

The South Street Trail serves primarily utilitarian purposes. It is intentionally designed to provide a safe 

multimodal transportation to essential services such as Badger High School, Lake Geneva Middle School, 

places of worship located along the proposed trail corridor, and the youth and family programing provided 

the future YMCA site. Further, the Trail will improve multimodal connections to jobs, particularly 

benefitting residents of the neighborhoods located along the proposed trail corridor. The Trail will connect to 

the Edwards Boulevard multimodal path, which provides a direct link to Lake Geneva’s employment areas, 

including Lake Geneva Business Park, the regional retail areas surrounding the USH 12/STH 50 interchange, 

and the business/retail areas located on Sheridan Springs Road. Additionally, the Trail connects residents to 

Geneva Lake and Big Foot Beach, as well as the diverse recreational activities available at Big Foot Beach 

State Park, the future Geneva Lakes Family YMCA, and Lake Geneva Youth Camp. The Trail does not 

connect to the multimodal transportation network outside of Lake Geneva; however, the City’s Bicycle & 



Lake Geneva South Street Trail 

Page 5 of 6 

Pedestrian Plan recommends regional connections between the City and other locations in Walworth 

County, including White River County Park and the White River State Trail. The South Street Trail would 

also provide access to the pedestrian path encircling Geneva Lake.  

Five. Project Benefit  

Environmental: The project increases access and connection to the natural environment by providing a safe, 

off-street connection to Big Foot Beach State Park (rear access from South Street), Lake Geneva Youth 

Camp, and the Geneva Lakes Family YMCA. Because of the many essential destinations and other 

multimodal facilities the Trail touches, the project increases the likelihood of modal shift from car travel to 

biking or walking, particularly for those who live along the route. 

Public Health: This project would impact public health in Lake Geneva by enabling more people to walk or 

bike to community destinations, thus increasing opportunities for exercise and reducing carbon emissions 

associated with driving. The School District is already concerned about safety issues for school children and 

their families walking to school; developing this trail would provide a safer option for people on bikes and on 

foot. The Trail would also provide multimodal access to the future YMCA site, which provides health, 

wellness, and fitness programming to area residents.  

Economic Justice: According to the most recent available HUD Data, 39% of the residents of the census 

block group (#551270016023) alongside the South Street Trail are considered “low-income,” i.e. earning less 

than 50% of the area’s median income (Source: ACS 5-Year 2011-2015 Low- and Moderate-Income 

Summary Data, accessed 2019). These residents will benefit from the trail, as it provides them with access to 

services, jobs, schools, and everyday destinations, particularly by filling a missing link to the multiuse path 

on Edwards Boulevard. Maintaining and enhancing safe, off-street pedestrian and bicycle facilities along 

South Street and CTH H will support further modal shift by enabling Lake Geneva residents to opt to walk or 

bike to essential destinations, including jobs, grocery stores, restaurants, daily shopping, and YMCA services 

and programming geared toward youth, elderly, and low-income families.  

Economic Development: While not on a commercial corridor, the Trail facilitates increased multimodal 

traffic on commercial corridors by filling a critical gap in the multimodal network. The Trail directly 



Lake Geneva South Street Trail 

Page 6 of 6 

connects to the Edwards Boulevard path, an important commercial corridor home to regional shopping areas 

and Lake Geneva Business Park – a key employment area. The Trail also directly connects to the rails-to-

trails corridor to Downtown Lake Geneva, a major retail, tourism, and employment hub in Walworth County. 

Safety: The South Street Trail addresses several specific safety concerns. This off-street path with curb-cuts 

project provides a separated multimodal facility on South Street and CTH H where none is provided. It also 

provides marked bike lanes on CTH H to safely connect residents to the new YMCA. The project addresses 

an existing lack of an adequate safe crossing at Wells Street by providing intersection improvements such as 

pavement marking, signage, and realigning the crosswalk and sidewalk to provide a safe place for trail users 

to wait to cross Wells Street. The project provides crosswalk enhancements at Dorwood Drive, providing 

pavement markings, signage, and a pedestrian-activated flashing beacon.  

Six. Project Capitalizes on, Supplements, or Augments an Existing Road Improvement Project 

This project supplements a future project to upgrade South Street/Bloomfield Road and Edwards Boulevard 

(STH 120) to a signalized intersection. The State has determined that the City has enough warrants to have a 

signal at STH 120. Currently in the planning stages (not scheduled), the signal project will be completed in 

partnership with the Town of Bloomfield and Lake Geneva School District and may be jointly funded with 

the School District. The signal project may occur before the South Street Trail project and the intersection 

will be designed to accommodate the Trail project. 





 Date: 1/23/20 
 Phone: 262-758-6032 

 Fax: 262-767-2750 
 Email: nrauch@kapurinc.com 

ITEM NO. ITEM UNIT QNTY  UNIT $  TOTAL  COMMENTS / ASSUMPTIONS 
201.0110 Clearing SY 5350  $            5.00 26,750.00$             Remove vegetation in area of new path and additional 2-ft per linear foot.
201.0210 Grubbing SY 5350  $            4.00 21,400.00$             Remove vegetation in area of new path and additional 2-ft per linear foot.
204.0100 Removing Pavement SY 88  $          10.00 880.00$                  Remove driveways.
204.0110 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 311  $            4.00 1,244.00$               Removal of asphalt driveways
204.0110 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 300  $            4.00 1,200.00$               Remove asphalt for bike path along Wells from HS to YMCA - 5 ft along length of 1600-ft
204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 50  $          15.00 750.00$                  Curb and gutter at Wells street intersection
205.0100 Excavation Common CY 4348  $          25.00 108,700.00$           Excavation of 9-in at 10-ft wide along new path, additional grading in areas of steep slope
305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch TON 2909  $          15.00 43,635.00$             Assume 6-in base course along new path.
305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch (storm sewer installation) TON 925  $          15.00 13,875.00$             2' x 2.5' trench along 2500-ft storm sewer at 2 tons/cy
416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-Inch SY 40  $          65.00 2,600.00$               Replacing concrete driveways.
460.5224 HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S TON 713  $          85.00 60,605.00$             3" asphalt lift - 10-ft wide path
523.0225.S Wall Modular Block Gravity Landscape SF 940  $          73.00 68,620.00$             Move and replace existing retaining wall on E. South Drive = 235-ft (assume 4'ft high)
601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D LF 1265  $          22.00 27,830.00$             Replace curb and gutter at Wells intersection for ADA ramps / 2500-ft along N side of E. South
602.0505 Curb Ramp Detectable Warning Field Yellow SF 320  $          40.00 12,800.00$             2' x 10' wide warning field at street crossings.
608.0312 Storm Sewer Reinforced Concrete Class III 12-Inch LF 655  $          65.00 42,575.00$             2500-ft of storm sewer along N side of E. South St. with proposed bike path, 20-ft from each. inlet to main.
611.0530 Manhole Covers Type J EACH 6  $        525.00 3,150.00$               Along 2500-ft of curb and gutter on N side of E. South St.
611.0624 Inlet Covers Type H EACH 8  $        650.00 5,200.00$               Inlets spaced every 300-ft along 2500-ft of curb and gutter on N side of South Street.
611.2004 Manholes 4-FT Diameter EACH 6  $     1,900.00 11,400.00$             Along 2500-ft of curb and gutter on N side of E. South St.
611.3220 Inlets 2x2-FT EACH 8  $     1,200.00 9,600.00$               Inlets spaced every 300-ft along 2500-ft of curb and gutter on N side of South Street.
628.1504 Silt Fence LF 3705  $            2.25 8,336.25$               Along length of path.
643.0100 Traffic Control (project) EACH 1  $   30,000.00 30,000.00$             Traffic control during construction / lane closure.
647.0796 Pavement Marking Crosswalk Epoxy 24-Inch LF 350  $          12.00 4,200.00$               7 major crossings; marking on Wells St and where trail switches sides of the road (Dorwood Dr)
690.0150 Sawing Asphalt LF 296  $            1.25 370.00$                  Two cuts at each asphalt driveway.
690.0250 Sawing Concrete LF 60  $            3.00 180.00$                  Two cuts at each concrete driveway.
SPV.0060 Remove and Reinstall City-Owned Light Pole EACH 16  $   10,000.00 160,000.00$           Utility poles along north side of E. South Street.

Pedestrian Signal Light EACH 2  $     3,000.00 6,000.00$               Pedestrian-activated crossing lights near Dorwood Dr & South Street

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil (625.0100), Fertilizer 
Type A (629.0205), Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 1586  $          10.00 15,860.00$             Restoration for 2-ft each linear foot of trail.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT ON BIKE PATH (12% OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS) 82,531.23$             
770,291.48$           
154,058.30$           
924,349.78$           

16% OF CONSTRUCTION 147,895.96$           
147,895.96$           

REAL ESTATE (VARYING JURISDICTIONS / WORK OUTSIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY) 100,000.00$           
100,000.00$           

ITEM NO. ITEM UNIT QNTY  UNIT $  TOTAL  COMMENTS / ASSUMPTIONS 
SPV.0060 Hydrant assembly relocation EACH 2  $     2,000.00 4,000.00$               Relocate 2 fire hydrants to right of way.

4,000.00$               

                              Kapur & Associates,  Inc.                                               

DESIGN  TOTAL
ENGINEERING DESIGN  BIKE PATH

PROJECT: Lake Geneva Bike Path TAP GRANT
Engineers Estimate of Quantities & Opinion of Cost

DESIGN ESTIMATE

 CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL
CONTINGENCIES (20%)
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATE

UTILITY  TOTAL

REAL ESTATE

REAL ESTATE  TOTAL

UTILITY





 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution approving the assigned fund balance for the Avian Committee donations account as of December 31, 
2019 

 
Committee: 

 
Finance considered on February 18, 2020 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-R10 Date: February 24, 2020 
 

 
Whereas, the Avian Committee received donated monies in the amount of $3,189.49 in 2019, and,  
 
Whereas, the Avian Committee had $442.80 in the Assigned Fund Balance-Avian account as of 
 1/1/19, and  
 
Whereas, the Avian Committee spent $169.50 of their donated monies in 2019 and therefore,  
the 12/31/19 ending balance for this account should be adjusted to $3,462.79, and 
 
Now Therefore be it Resolved by the Lake Geneva Common Council to adopt this resolution  
to adjust the 2019 Fund Balance accounts as follows: 
 
Increase Acct # 11-00-00-34510, Assigned Fund Balance-Avian, by $3,019.99 
Decrease Acct # 11-00-00-34800, Unassigned Fund Balance, by $3,019.99 
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
 

 

Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                     Date 

 
 
 



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
Assigned Fund Balances-Avian Committee - Donations
12/31/19

Assigned Fund Balance 12/31/18 442.80      
Revenues 3,189.49  
Expenditures (169.50)    
Assigned Fund Balance 12/31/19 3,462.79  



 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution approving the assigned fund balance for the Historic Preservation Committee donations account as 
of December 31, 2019 

 
Committee: 

 
Finance considered on February 18, 2020 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-R11 Date: February 24, 2020 
 

 
Whereas, the Historic Preservation Committee received donated monies in the amount of $141.00 
 in 2019, and,  
 
Whereas, the Historic Preservation Committee had $3,892.00 in the Assigned Fund Balance-Historic 
Preservation account as of 1/1/19, and  
 
Whereas, the Historic Preservation Committee spent $1,680.90 of their donated monies in 2019  
and therefore, the 12/31/19 ending balance for this account should be adjusted to $2,352.10, and 
 
Now Therefore be it Resolved by the Lake Geneva Common Council to adopt this resolution 
 to adjust the 2019 Fund Balance accounts as follows: 
 
Increase Acct # 11-00-00-34800, Unassigned Fund Balance, by $1,539.90 
Decrease Acct # 11-00-00-34500, Assigned Fund Balance-Historic Preservation, by $1,539.90 
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
 

 

Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                     Date 

 
 



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
Assigned Fund Balances-Historical  Preservation - Donations
12/31/19

Assigned Fund Balance 12/31/18 3,892.00    
Revenues 141.00       
Expenditures (1,680.90)  
Assigned Fund Balance 12/31/19 2,352.10    



 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution adopting 2019 transfers from the Lakefront Special Revenue Fund and the Parking Special Revenue 
Fund to the General Fund. 

 
Committee: 

 
Finance considered on February 18, 2020 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-R12 Date: February 24, 2020 
 

 
Whereas, the Lake Geneva Common Council approved the 2019 Operating Budget for the General Fund 
which includes revenue from transfers from the Lakefront Fund of $463,941 and the Parking Fund of 
$878,100, and 
 
Whereas, it was previous approved that all but $75,000 of revenues over expenditures from each of these 
Special Revenue Funds be transferred to the General Fund, and    
 
Whereas, it is still desirable to have a fund balance remaining in each of these Special Revenue Funds and 
the level that would be most appropriate is $1,134,856 for the Lakefront Fund and $1,125,000 for the Parking 
Fund and that the excess could be transferred to the General Fund by the year end 2019, 
 
Now Therefore be it Resolved that the Lake Geneva Common Council adopt a resolution to transfer to the 
General Fund, at year end 2019, an amount of $449,265 from the Lakefront Special Revenue Fund and an 
amount of $954,368 from the Parking Special Revenue Fund which will leave a $75,000 addition to the fund 
balance in each of these funds. 
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 24th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
 
 

 

Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 





























Capital Improvement Plan 2020 thru 2024
           City of Lake   

Project #

Project Name:

Expenditures 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total
Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

Funding Sources 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total
Capital Budget

Date this form was submitted:

Geneva, Wisconsin
Department

Contact
Type

Useful Life

Category
Priority

Total Project Cost:

Justification

Description

Budget Impact / Other

Total

Total






















	0-February 24, 2020 Council Agenda
	City of Lake Geneva regular common council
	Monday, February 24, 2020 6:00 p.m.

	08-February 10, 2020 Council Minutes
	Ucity of lake geneva regular common council
	UMonday, February 10, 2020 7:00 p.m. or immediately following the adjournment of the joint plan commission and common council meeting

	09a-Operator Licenses
	09b-06 14 20 RAM Big Foot Tri
	09c-04 11 2020 Jaycees Easter Egg Hunt
	12-Revised YMCA Agreement 02-19-20-63640
	13a-Comp Plan Changes Approved by Plan Commission - 2.18.20
	13b-Ordinance 20-01- Adopting the Comprehensive Plan
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	14aa-Resolution 20-R09- TAP Grant Support
	Council Action:   Adopted Failed          Vote

	14ab-TAP Grant Resolution of Support Cover Memo - 2.3.2020
	14ad-City of Lake Geneva TAP Application 2020-2024_REVISED (PDF COPY)
	Review and utilize TAP guidelines and application instructions when completing this document.
	As discussed in the WisDOT TAP Guidelines, this application will go through a two-step process.  The first step will be an assessment by the region as to eligibility and whether or not the project will be able to meet the rigorous, statutorily mandate...
	Project Applicant

	14ae-Narrative Response Questions - 1.23.20
	14af-Project Map (Lake Geneva)
	14ag-Cost Estimate Detail (Lake Geneva)_REVISED
	Total

	14b-Lakeland Community Church Donation
	14ca-Resolution 20-R10 Avian Committee- 2019
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	14cb-Assigned Fund Balances 2019- Avian
	Avian Committee

	14da-Resolution 20-R11 Historic Preservation- 2019
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	14db-Assigned Fund Balances 2019- Historic Preservation
	Hist Preservation

	14e-Resolution 20-R12 Lakefront-Parking Fund Transfers 2019
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	14f-Fire Alarm Panel Quotes
	14ha-Burris Eq Turf Sweeper quote
	14hb-Harper turf sweeper
	14hc-pull behind turf sweeper
	14hd-Turf sweeper replacement. 2020
	Sheet1

	14ia-Pre-Paid Check Report- FLR Approved 2-18-2020
	14ib-Regular Check Report- FLR Approved 2-18-2020

	Department: DPW
	Contact 1: Tom Earle
	Contact 2: 
	Project: 2020 Equipment Replacement
	Useful Life: 10 years
	Project Name 1: Turf sweeper replacement
	Project Name 2: 
	Category: Equip replace
	Priority: 
	Total Project Cost: $30,000
	Total: 
	Total_2: $30,000.00
	Date this form was submitted: 25 Sept 2019
	Text1: Turf sweeper used in all open areas for spring cleanup and after all major events.
	Justification: Current machine is 25 years old and needs constant repair. Repairs are not terribly expensive
	Text3: $30,000
	Text4: 
	Budget Impact: $30,000.00 from Equipment Replacement Fund
	Text2: Picks up garbage, sticks, napkins, bottles, etc. on turf/grass.
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: but are time consuming and causes crews to lose time as trash pick up is then done by hand.
	Text9: This machine replaces 3 staff members on a trash pick up project after a major festival.
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 


